
 

 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP 
 

K. Miles 

Chief Executive. 
 

 
 

 GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the  Governance Committee will be held as a Virtual – Online meeting on 
TUESDAY, 12TH JANUARY, 2021 at 6.30 pm. 
 
Members of the Committee Councillor Roome (Chair) 

 
Councillors Bushell, Campbell, Jenkins, Lane, Luggar, Phillips, Topps and Walker 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Virtual meetings procedure - briefing and etiquette   

 Chair to report. 
 

2.   Apologies for absence   

3.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 3rd November 
2020 subject to:  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 The replacement of the word “Insurance” with “Assurance” in minute 114. 
 

4.   Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered by 
the meeting as a matter of urgency.   

5.   Declarations of Interests.   

 (Please complete the form provided at the meeting or telephone Corporate and 
Community Services to prepare a form for your signature before the meeting. 
Interests must be re-declared when the item is called, and Councillors must leave 
the room if necessary.) 

 

6.   To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information).   

PART A 

7.   Update on Governance Arrangements   

 Chief Executive to report. 
 

8.   Update on Business Continuity   

 Chief Executive to report. 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
2 

 

9.   Internal Audit Progress Report  (Pages 11 - 20) 

 Report by Devon Audit Partnership (attached). 
 

10.   External Audit Annual Audit Letter  (Pages 21 - 38) 

 Report by Grant Thornton (attached). 
 

11.   External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update.  (Pages 39 - 54) 

 Report by Grant Thornton (attached). 
 

12.   Audit Recommendation Tracker  (Pages 55 - 62) 

 Report by the Chief Executive (attached). 
 

13.   Work Programme 2020-2021  (Pages 63 - 66) 

 To consider the Work Programme 2020-21 (attached). 
 

PART B (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION) 

Nil. 
 
 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 
 

4.01.21 
 



 
 

 
3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council 
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be 
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is 
respected.  
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place and a reminder will be issued at the 
commencement of virtual meetings. 

 
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording 

if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting 
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should 
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. In a virtual 
meeting the public will be excluded from the meeting while in Part B. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that 

agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can 
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the 
earliest opportunity. Public contributions to virtual meetings will be recorded, 
unless, at the Chair’s discretion, recording is deemed in appropriate in accordance 
with point 2 above. 

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk.



 
 

 
4 

 

 

Meeting Etiquette Reminder for Members  
 
Members are reminded to: 

 Join the meeting at least 10-15 minutes prior to the commencement to ensure that the 
meeting starts on time. 

 Behave as you would in a formal committee setting. 

 Address Councillors and officers by their full names. 

 Do not have Members of your household in the same room.  

 Be aware of what is in screen shot. 

 Mute your microphone when you are not talking. 

 Switch off video if you are not speaking. 

 Only speak when invited to do so by the Chair. 

 Speak clearly (if you are not using video then please state your name)  

 If you’re referring to a specific page, mention the page number. 

 Switch off your video and microphone after you have spoken. 

 The only person on video will be the Chair and the one other person speaking. 

 Only use the Chat function to register that you wish to speak or to move or second a 

motion. 

 

Virtual attendance by members of the public 

 

If members of the public wish to attend virtually, please contact Corporate and 

Community services on 01271 388253 or memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk by 12pm 

on the Monday preceding the meeting. 
 

mailto:memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk


 

Governance Committee - 3 November 2020 
 

1 
 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of Governance Committee held at Virtual - Online meeting on 
Tuesday, 3rd November, 2020 at 6.30 pm 
 
PRESENT: Members: 

 
 Councillor Roome (Chair) 

 
 Councillors Jenkins, Luggar and Walker 

 
 Officers: 

 
 Chief Executive, Accountancy Services Manager and Senior 

Solicitor/Monitoring Officer 
 

 

107.   VIRTUAL MEETINGS PROCEDURE - BRIEFING AND ETIQUETTE 
 

The Committee Clerk advised the Committee of the rules and etiquette for remote 
meetings. 
 

108.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Bushell and Henderson. 
 

109.   TO APPROVE AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETINGS HELD ON 8TH SEPTEMBER 2020 AND 5TH 
OCTOBER 2020. 
 

The Committee approved the minutes of the Governance meetings of 8th September 
2020 and 5th October 2020. 
 

110.   ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE 
CHAIR SHOULD BE CONSIDERED BY THE MEETING AS A 
MATTER OF URGENCY. 
 

There were no items to be brought forward as a matter of urgency. 
 

111.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS. 
 

There were no Declarations of Interests announced. 
  

112.   TO AGREE THE AGENDA BETWEEN PART 'A' AND PART 'B' 
(CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION). 
 

There were no ‘Part B’ agenda items. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 3 November 2020 

 
 

 
2 

 

113.   INTERNAL AUDIT - ASSURANCE OPINIONS - 
STANDARDISATION ACROSS PUBLIC SECTOR 
 

The Committee considered a report by Devon Audit Partnership (DAP) regarding the 
Internal Audit Assurance Opinions – Standardisation across Public Sector (circulated 
previously). 
 
Internal Auditor (DC) addressed the Committee and explained the background to the 
report: 
 

 This report concerning the Assurance Opinions was used to set the scene on 
the additional reports provided by DAP. 

 The Audit opinion itself was the Auditor’s judgement and not based on any 
scientific calculation.  Whether the opinion was ‘substantial’ or ‘reasonable’ it 
would be discussed with their client, in this instance; North Devon Council. 

 The opinion of Reasonable Assurance was given in the majority of cases. 

 Opinions were given in consultation with the Management Board at DAP, 
following the CIPFA standards. 

 This was now the standard approach, used across the board, in order to 
establish a constant approach. 

 The new system provided a colour-coded rating for the Assurance Mapping 
(Red/amber/green) to enable clearer and quicker interpretation or both an 
overall position, and specific areas of concern. 

 
RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Assurance Opinions – 
Standardisation across Public Sector report be noted. 
 

114.   INTERNAL AUDIT ASSURANCE MAPPING 
 

The Committee considered a report by Devon Audit Partnership regarding Internal 
Audit Assurance Mapping (circulated previously). 
 
The Committee was advised of the following: 
 

 This report was now colour coded, as explained previously, using a colour-
coded rating system (red/amber/green).  The Map was set out as a table. 

 It had been a new process to both the DAP and the Authority in the 
preparation and delivery of the report.  Due to the constraints of working 
during the pandemic, the work had been delivered remotely so adjustment 
had to be made to the methods of audit, and the approach. 

 Public Sector Insurance Standards expect the Audit map to be completed 
alongside the Risk Register, however, it was accepted the issues faced had 
prevented this.  In future it was hoped that the map and register would be 
produced together. 

 The Map was ‘live’ and would be amended over the financial year. It was 
hoped it would make identification of any hotspots on the control network 
easier. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 3 November 2020 

 
 

 
3 

 

 The Map/Table was set out in three sections – each line of defence; Business 
Operation, Financial Corporate and Governance, and Independent 
Assurance. 

 DAP had built this based on the work of the previous auditors, however their 
work had been re-examined, as DAP had been required to do. 

 Based on what had been seen in 2019-20 it was expected that many of the 
areas currently ‘amber’ would be moved to ‘green’ as the year progressed.  
Some area were yet to be classified/coloured. 

 The Map was specifically tailored for each Local Authority, although the base 
template was the same for all. 

 It was considered that the Assurance Mapping report would be continuously 
updated and could be presented to the Governance Committee regularly if 
required. 

 
The Chair advised that he thought it would be a valuable visual tool and appeared 
easy to understand. It could also be used as a benchmark against other Authorities’ 
progress. 
 
The Auditor advised that it would not be suitable as a benchmark as such, as there 
was no league table, although it could help to identify where other Las may be of use 
in order to learn from each other and provide advice and assistance in particular 
areas. 
 
The Chair advised he felt it could be used to examine progress and concentrate on 
particular areas of work.  He hoped that within a year that any currently uncoloured 
issues would be coloured. 
 

RESOLVED that Internal Audit Assurance Mapping be noted. 
 

115.   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 
 

The Committee considered a report by Devon Audit Partnership regarding the 
Internal Audit progress report for 2020-21 (circulated previously). 
 
The Committee was introduced to the new Auditor and given an update on his 
background and experience. 
 
The Committee was advised of the following in relation to the Internal Audit Progress 
Report 2020-21: 
 

 Progress had been slow over the past year due to the pandemic. 

 The introduction gave a useful indicator of the overall opinion of the annual 
report which was indicative of the Annual Assurance Opinion. 

 The Opinion Statement contained the definitions of the assurance ratings. 

 The “Summary of Audit Reports and Findings for 2020-21” provided 
information on three core key financial systems.  It listed the core audits and 
some of the initial findings.  The summary was in the form of a table.  The 
information was assessed at an opinion of Reasonable Assurance.  The 
Auditors would speak to managers if areas required improvement.  The LA 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 3 November 2020 

 
 

 
4 

 

would need to focus on core risks and ensure that the managers were 
considering these. Generally the risks were being managed and escalated 
appropriately. 

 The delivery of the signed plan was delayed as resources were redirected to 
Covid-19 works. The auditors would be speaking to the Head of Resources in 
the next couple of weeks to get any remaining audits scheduled. 

 ANA refers to the Audit Needs Assessment. It was hoped that the LA’s 
software would pick up the scoring from the Risk Register to give an overall 
context.  The columns on the right hand side of the summary table covered 
the recommendations and the direction or travel.  The direction of travel was a 
pictorial indication of the way the item was headed, i.e. towards or away from 
a green/red/amber rating.  

 
In response to questions from the committee the Auditor advised: 
 

 The opinion of Reasonable Assurance was unlikely to change. 

 Auditors were unable to compare officers’ performance when working from 
home against when working in the offices.  Audits could be used to see if the 
controls in place were suitable for the changes which come from working 
remotely, e.g. the use of e-signatures to authorise payments, or the ability to 
do ICT system updates when users were active remotely. 

 The audits were in place to provide individual assurance to ensure controls 
continue to be effective as procedures change. 

 
The Chief Executive advised that any issues regarding staff performance whilst 
working from home would be a management issue, rather than for the auditors. 
 

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Progress report 2020-21 be noted. 
 

116.   EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND SECTOR UPDATE 
 

The Committee considered a report by Grant Thornton regarding the External Audit 
Progress report and Sector Update (circulated previously). 
 
The External Auditor confirmed: 
 

 The report set out the progress made against the 2019-20 audit. The 
findings had been presented in October 2020 and now, only a few items 
were outstanding. 

 Progress had been made and many items cleared.   

 The final Letter of Representation, the Draft Accounts, and the Annual 
Governance Statement had all been signed. 

 Still outstanding were completion of work on PPE and Investment 
Properties, receipt and review of the letters of assurance from the Devon 
County Council (DCC) Pension Fund Auditor.  These were also being 
waiting on by other Devon Authorities.  DCC were hoping to issue these by 
the end of November 2020. 

 The Value for Money conclusion was expected to be that of ‘Unqualified’. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 3 November 2020 

 
 

 
5 

 

 The Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim work was ongoing. Additional ‘40+’ 
testing was being carried out by the Benefits Officers. When this was 
completed it would be reviewed. The auditors intended to complete this 
work by the original 30th November 2020 deadline.  It was noted that the 
Department for Works and Pensions (DWP) had extended the deadline to 
31st January 2021.  The findings would be presented to the Committee in 
the Certification Letter in January 2021. 

 The Report included information on the Redmond Review which discussed 
the effectiveness of local audit; suggesting the creation of a new regulator, 
and re-assessment of fees.  The review also made reference to the 
possible streamlining of the Annual Accounts as the information required 
from LAs had increased.  The Auditor noted that as accounts were so 
complex any such action would require legislation change.  The review 
also suggested the appointment of an independent person to Audit 
Committees.  Not necessarily a Councillor, but someone with relevant 
business or financial experience. 

 
The report contained additional articles in relation to the Sector Update, Code of 
Audit Practice and Revised Approach to Value for Money Audit Work, Local 
Government Reorganisation in Two-Tier Shire Counties,  along with a number of 
reports relating to Covid-19 and economic recovery 
 
In response to questions from the Committee, the External Auditor confirmed that: 
 

 The target to sign off the audit was the end of November 2020.  The DCC 
Pension Fund Auditor (who was also a Grant Thornton employee) would 
provide their reports by that target date although were unable to give a 
definitive date currently. 

 Some Committees had appointed one or even two independent members.  
There was the opinion that the skill set of Audit Committee Members varied 
across the country and that the addition of an independent person could 
facilitate change and bring additional knowledge and ideas from a different 
perspective. The challenge however was the ability to attract people with 
appropriate skills to the role. 

 The Auditors regularly met with the Chief Executive and the Head of 
Resources and the reports would come to this Governance committee. The 
report could however be presented to Full Council if required. 

 There were no penalties if the audits were not signed off by the deadline, 
although the LA would have to publish the reason(s) for the delay.  If the 
reason was the delay of the DCC Pension Fund report then there would be 
other LAs with the same issue. 

 
The Chief Executive echoed the issues in appointing independent people to 
committees and suggested that the LA’s Monitoring Officer could attend. 
 

RESOLVED that the External Audit Progress Report and Sector 
Update be noted. 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 
Governance Committee - 3 November 2020 

 
 

 
6 

 

117.   AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKER 
 

The Committee considered the Audit Recommendation Tracker report by the Chief 
Executive in respect of actions taken to address internal and external audit 
recommendations (circulated previously).  
The Chief Executive advised the Committee of the following updates: 
 

 Table A detailed the ten Recommendations currently in progress. 

 No recommendations had been included in table B (recommendations 
completed since the last meeting of the Governance Committee). 

 Table C detailed three recommendations for which time extensions were 
being requested.  Of these, item 20 FB&E 03 could not be completed now 
many staff were working remotely who had been unable to undertake the 
training required. Staff would be required to compete an e-learning 
module. 

 Table D confirmed there were no outstanding recommendations. 
 
Councillor Walker wished to pass on her thanks to those involved for their hard work 
in completing the recommendations to date. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
(a) that that the extensions to time scales requested in the Audit 

Recommendation Tracker be approved; and 
 

(b) that the Audit Recommendation Tracker be noted. 
 

 

118.   WORK PROGRAMME 
 

The Committee considered the work programme for 2020-21 (circulated previously). 
 
 RESOLVED that the work programme for 2020-21 be noted. 
 
Chair 
The meeting ended at 8.00 pm 
 
NOTE: These minutes will be confirmed as a correct record at the next meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



Robert Hutchins 
Head of Audit Partnership 

Internal Audit 
 
Audit Progress Report 2020-21 
 
North Devon District Council 
Governance Committee 
 
January 2021 

 
 
 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 9



 

1 

 

Introduction 

The Governance Committee, under its Terms of Reference contained in North Devon District Council’s 
Constitution, is required to consider the Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report, to review and approve the 
Internal Audit programme, and to monitor the progress and performance of Internal Audit. 
 
The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2015 introduced the requirement that all 
Authorities need to carry out an annual review of the effectiveness of their internal audit system and need to 
incorporate the results of that review into their Annual Governance Statement (AGS), published with the 
annual Statement of Accounts. 
  
The Internal Audit plan for 2020-21 was presented and approved by the Governance Committee in March 
2020. The following report and appendices set out the background to audit service provision and provides a 
position statement on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control environment. 
 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Head of Internal Audit to provide an annual report 
providing an opinion that can be used by the organisation to inform its governance statement. This report 
contributes to that annual opinion. 
 
Expectations of the Governance Committee from this progress report 

Governance Committee members are requested to consider: 

 the assurance statement within this report; 

 the basis of our opinion and the completion of audit work against the plan; 

 the revised audit plan provided; 

 audit coverage and findings provided; 

 the overall performance and customer satisfaction on audit delivery. 

 
In review of the above the Governance Committee are required to consider the assurance provided 
alongside that of the Executive, Corporate Risk Management and external assurance including that of the 
External Auditor as part of the Governance Framework and satisfy themselves from this assurance that the 
internal control framework continues to be maintained. 

 

Robert Hutchins 
Head of Devon Audit Partnership 

Contents Page 

Introduction 1 

Opinion Statement 2 

Executive Summary Audit Results  2 

Value Added 3 

Audit Coverage & Progress Against 
Plan  

3 
 

Revision to the Audit Plan 3 

  

 Appendices  

1 – Summary of Audit Results 4 

2 – Amended Audit Plan for 2020-21 6 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 9



  

2 

 

Opinion Statement 

This opinion statement will support Members in their consideration for signing the 
Annual Governance Statement. 

Internal Audit assesses whether key, and other, controls are operating 
satisfactorily within audit reviews. An opinion on the adequacy of controls is 
provided to management as part of each audit report.   

All final audit reports include an action plan which identifies responsible 
officers, and target dates, to address control issues identified. 
Implementation of action plans is the responsibility of management but may 
be reviewed during subsequent audits or as part of a follow-up process. 

Directors and Senior Management are provided with details of Internal 
Audit’s opinion for each audit review to assist them with compilation of their 
individual annual governance assurance statements at year end.   

 

Executive Summary of Audit Results 

Core Key Financial Audits  

We have provided a “Substantial” Assurance for Income Collection, and a 
‘Reasonable Assurance’ opinions for all other completed audit work to date. 
Car Parks, and Housing Benefits are currently in fieldwork status. The 
remaining two core audits will be undertaken in Quarter 4.   

Risk Based Audit 

We have agreed a joint audit report for North and Mid Devon relating to 
Building Control providing a Reasonable Assurance.  

We are currently completing audits on Covid-19 safe staff operations, and 
on the Leisure Centre. At this time, we do not report anything of significant 
concern, but we will provide an update in the coming committee meeting.  

Work next quarter will include important reviews of Cyber Security, and 
Climate Change. We will also be following up on actions from the previous 
Business Continuity audit.  

A table showing the audit opinions delivered to date is set out below. 

Audits delivered this 
year 

Assurance 
Opinion  

Recommendations  

H M L O 

Main Accounting 
System 

Reasonable 1 2   

Income Collection Substantial 2 2   

Creditors Reasonable  3   

Building Control Reasonable 3 2 1 1 

New Leisure Centre Reasonable 
proposed 

 2 3 3 

Counter Fraud Work 

We have agreed the counter fraud work we will undertake, including 
reviewing the Counter Fraud Strategy and Plan to ensure that there is 
suitable focus on the significant areas where fraud might be committed, and 
providing access to a training package.   

Substantial 
Assurance 

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists 
across the organisation, with internal controls operating effectively and 
being consistently applied to support the achievement of strategic and 
operational objectives. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

There are generally sound systems of governance, risk management 
and control in place across the organisation. Some issues, non-
compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at 
risk the achievement of some of the strategic and operational 
objectives. 

Limited 
Assurance 

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified across 
the organisation. Improvement is required to the system of governance, 
risk management and control to effectively manage risks and ensure 
that strategic and operational objectives can be achieved. 

No 
Assurance 

Immediate action is required to address fundamental control gaps, 
weaknesses or issues of non-compliance identified across the 
organisation. The system of governance, risk management and control 
is inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
strategic and operational objectives. 

We are completing work against the agreed internal audit plan to 
support provision of an opinion on the overall control environment. 
Assurances opinions assessed to date indicate that we are likely to 
provide a Reasonable Assurance opinion on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control framework. 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 9



  

3 

 

Assurance Mapping 

Based on our audit results, we will be updating the assurance map in early 
January and will present a new version for Audit Committee at the March 
2021 meeting.   

Value Added 
It is important that the internal audit service seeks to "add value" whenever it 
can and we believe internal audit activity has added value to the 
organisation and its stakeholders by: 

 Providing objective and relevant assurance; 

 Contributing to the effectiveness and efficiency of the governance, risk 
management and internal control processes. 

 Adjusting the audit plan to ensure we provide real time assurance, such 
as on Safe staff operations during this emergency. 

Audit Coverage and Performance Against Plan  

Work is progressing at pace to complete the revised audit plan. Four of the 
core audits are complete, two are in fieldwork and the remaining two key 
financial systems will be undertaken before the year end. During December 
we also took forward two audits, to provide important assurance on Safe 
Staff Operations during Covid-19, and also on the Leisure Centre which is a 
significant Council project. We consider we are in a good position to 
complete the revised audit plan.  

Appendix 1 to this report provides a summary of the audits in progress / 
undertaken to date, along with our assurance opinion. Where a “substantial 
assurance” or “reasonable assurance” of audit opinion has been provided 
we can confirm that, overall, sound controls are in place to mitigate 
exposure to risks identified; where an opinion of “limited assurance” has 
been provided then issues were identified during the audit process that 
required attention. We have provided a summary of key issues reported 
that are being addressed by management. We are content that 
management are appropriately addressing these issues. 

Key performance indicators on progress against audit recommendations 
is monitored and managed by the Authority. We are due to undertake a 
formal review of recommendations in Quarter Four of recommendations to 
confirm that they have been effectively implemented.  

Revision of the Audit Plan 
The impact of Covid-19 on work delivery required adjustments to the 
Council audit plan. We have discussed changes with Council management. 
The agreed revised plan is at Appendix 2.  

The result is that we agreed to defer some non-core audits into 2021-22. 
These are shown in yellow. That said, as the plan is flexible, we also added 
an audit on Safe Staff Operations during Covid-19 using the contingency 
days. In terms of audit days, we still expect to deliver the bulk of the original 
plan. This will still allow us to provide an overall assurance report.  
We welcome Governance Committee comments and questions to the 
revisions.   

Planning for 2021-22 Audit Plan 
We have started to prepare an audit plan for 2021-22. This will be 
discussed with management before being submitted to Audit Committee for 
review and approval.   

Fraud Prevention and Detection  
There have been no reported issues in the year to date. Management are 
aware that they can refer any suspected issues to our counter fraud team. 
We have agreed terms of reference for our work this year which includes 
review of the Counter Fraud Strategy and Plan.  
 

Customer Satisfaction – satisfaction returns specific to NDDC have 

yet to be received this year though in general for DAP, survey returns score 
98% satisfaction year to date.  

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 9



  

4 

 

Appendix 1 – Summary of audit reports and findings for 2020-21 

Risk Assessment Key Direction of Travel Assurance Key 
Spar – Local Authority Risk Register score Impact x Likelihood = Total & Level 
ANA - Audit Needs Assessment risk level as agreed with Client Senior Management 
Client Request – additional audit at request of Client Senior Management; no risk 
assessment information available 

Green – action plan agreed with client for delivery over an appropriate timescale; 
Amber – agreement of action plan delayed or we are aware progress is hindered; 
Red – action plan not agreed or we are aware progress on key risks is not being made. 
* report recently issued, assurance progress is of managers feedback at debrief meeting. 
 

 

Risk Area / Audit Entity 

Audit Report 

Assurance 
opinion 

Executive Summary / Residual Risk 
Summary of 

Recommendations 
High / Med / Low 

Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance 

Core - Key Financial Systems     

Main Accounting System 

Risk / ANA: ANA –High 

Pentana n/a 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

 

Status: Final 

We identified no significant control weaknesses in our testing, though we noted risk 
related to segregation of duties as some staff can raise and post journals. 
Management has decided to accept this small risk as necessary for business 
operations given the small size of the team.  

In relations to business continuity, which is heightened at the current time, there is 
an increase in exposure where system release updates have not been implemented 
on the Main Accounting system for more than a year. Management has agreed to 
include updates on their system plan, and to bring the system up to date next year.  

The third recommendation relates to regular review of access rights to the system to 
ensure only current staff members have access. This will now be checked on a 
quarterly basis.   

1 2 - 
 

Income Collection 

Risk / ANA: ANA - Medium 

Pentana n/a 

Substantial 
Assurance 

 

Status: Final 

Internal cash collection procedures are robust and secure as is the transfer of 
monies from NDC staff to external cash collection operatives contracted to transfer 
council monies to banking. A contract exists to support collection of income from 
NDC offices to contractor premises and the subsequent allocation of the credit to the 
NDC bank account. The Customer Services team consists of long-standing 
members of staff fully conversant with their duties and responsibilities.  

The first High Recommendation relates to the Customer Services Team taking card 
payments over the telephone from members of the public. This is considered not 
compliant with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard which is designed 
to reduce the risk of making payments. Management has accepted that work to 
become compliant with the Payment Card Industry Standard will be prioritized.  

2     2 - 
 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 9



  

5 

 

Risk Area / Audit Entity 

Audit Report 

Assurance 
opinion 

Executive Summary / Residual Risk 
Summary of 

Recommendations 
High / Med / Low 

Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance 

The second High Recommendation relates to ensuring that daily post opening 
operations be undertaken by at least two staff members to reduce the risk to staff 
from any allegations received regarding cash or other payment types contained in 
envelopes received.  

Creditors System 

Risk / ANA: Medium 

Pentana n/a 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

 

Status: Final 

The control framework related to creditors is generally effective, with appropriate 
checks on new suppliers and on creditor payments made by BACS. Payments are 
being made promptly, and there are checks to prevent duplicate payments.  

We made four recommendations to improve controls:  

 Further work to reduce the number of purchases made without an approved 
purchase order; 

 Improving segregation of duties on the system to reduce the risk of 
individuals circumventing system controls and ensuring they align with 
delegations; 

 Review creditors with long outstanding credit balances (those owing the 
council money); 

 Removing creditors with long outstanding balances from the system where 
there is no likelihood they will be used again.  

- 4 - 
 

Risk Based Reviews 

NMD Building Control 

Risk / ANA: ANA – Low, 
Client request 

Pentana n/a 

 
Reasonable 
Assurance 

 
Status: Final 

The NMD Building Control Partnership continues to develop and operate effectively. 
The Quality Management System framework appears to be working well, is 
supported by documentary evidence and has been certified by an independent 
UKAS accredited body. Local accreditation by an external assessment is expected 
soon. NMD Building Control have a good awareness of the Hackitt Inquiry and the 
proposed changes likely to affect them.  Being a member of the LABC and the 
certification in the ISO9001 enables NMD Building Control to keep up to date with 
legislation, impending changes and the impact of these on their service.  NMD 
Building Control has obtained qualifications outlined by the LABC to demonstrate 
their competency which is believed to be part of the proposal of the Hackitt review. 

The high recommendations related to: 

 Holding quarterly partnership meetings between NMD Building Control, North 
Devon and Mid Devon to review delivery and performance (these are now 

3 2 1 
 

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 9



  

6 

 

Risk Area / Audit Entity 

Audit Report 

Assurance 
opinion 

Executive Summary / Residual Risk 
Summary of 

Recommendations 
High / Med / Low 

Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance 

being held). 

 Ensuring that risks related to NMD Building Control are escalated and held 
on North Devon (and Mid Devon) Council risk registers where appropriate.  

 Considering risk related to the impending changes to the Building Safety Bill. 
 

New Tarka Leisure 
Centre 

Risk / ANA: ANA – Low, 
Client request 

 

Indicative - 
Reasonable 
Assurance 

A draft report has been provided to management. We consider there are effective 
controls to monitor delivery of the build of the leisure centre, and the risks 
associated with it. There are a range of experts involved in monitoring delivery, 
including the Councils Parks and Leisure Team, the project manager (Currie and 
Brown), and UK Sport representatives. The comprehensive Design, Build, Operate 
and Maintain arrangements detailed in the contract are designed to reduce the level 
of risk to the Council.  

Improvement opportunities in the control environment include: 

 Enhancing the Projects risk register to more clearly detail out the mitigating 
actions for each risk, and to include “Opportunities”;  

 More systematic stakeholder engagement supported by creation of a 
communications plan; 

 Obtaining additional assurance from the contractors that there will not be 
shortages of materials that delay the build programme (3rd party resilience).  

 

-     2 3 
 

Safe staff operations 
during the C-19 
emergency 

TBC We are undertaking a quick piece of work to review how council staff are being 
supported during the Covid-19 emergency. This includes how risks are identified 
and actions mitigated. As part of the review we have issued a survey to staff to get 
their views on how well they are being supported. The review will also consider 
approaches from other councils including Mid Devon, to help identify good practice 
that could be adopted.  

    

Coming Audit Reviews  
 

We have the following work in fieldwork currently: 

 Safe Operations for staff during Covid-19. 

 Car Parks. 

 Housing Benefits. 

 Counter Fraud support. 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 9



  

7 

 

Risk Area / Audit Entity 

Audit Report 

Assurance 
opinion 

Executive Summary / Residual Risk 
Summary of 

Recommendations 
High / Med / Low 

Direction 
of Travel 

Assurance 

We are planning the following work to be undertaken before year end: 

 Council Tax. 

 Payroll. 

 Cyber Security. 

 Climate Change. 

 Follow up of Business Continuity audit. 

 Governance Arrangements. 

 Information Governance. 
 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 9



  

8 

 

Appendix 2 – Revised Audit Plan for 2020-21 

Audit/Task  
Original 

days 
Revised 

days  
Go ahead or defer 

    

Core Audits 73 73   

Council Tax/NNDR 10 10 YES  

Income and Cash Collection 4 4 COMPLETED 

Main Accounting System 12 12 COMPLETED 

Housing Benefits 15 15 IN FIELDWORK 

Creditors 10 10 COMPLETED 

Payroll -incl off payroll working /use of consultants 14 14 YES 

 Car Parks 8 8 IN FIELDWORK 

Risk Based Audits 108 69   

Health and Safety 7 0 See Covid-19 Assurance audit 

Cyber Security 22 22 YES 

Building Control 0 0 COMPLETED - joint report 
provided for ND /MD 

Leisure Contract 5 5 REPORTING 

Members Allowances 5 0 DEFER TO 21/22 

Customer Service Centre 8  0  DEFER TO 21/22 

Regeneration 8       0 DEFER TO 21/22 

Assurance Work       

Risk Management 10 10 COMPLETED 

Climate Change 10 10 YES 

Governance Arrangements 5 5 YES 

Information Governance 5 5 YES 

Fraud, Bribery and Ethics 7 7 YES 

Transformation 8 0 DEFER TO 2021/22 

Crematorium 3 0 DEFER TO 2021/22 

Audit Follow-up (key reviews from last year) 5 5 Follow up of previous 
recommendations - not incl BCP 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 32 22   

Annual Report, Progress Reports, Annual 
Planning 

22 22 YES 

Consultancy/Contingency 10 0 
Days used for Safe Staff C-19 
operations below. 

Additional Chargeable Work - Fraud and Irregs 5 15   

Follow-up of the Business Continuity Plan  5 5 YES 

Safe staff C-19 operations  
0 10 

FIELDWORK - new audit to 
provide assurance on staff 
safety.  

TOTAL AUDIT - DAYS 218 179   

Page 19

Agenda Item 9



  

9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

This page is intentionally blank. 
 

Devon Audit Partnership 

The Devon Audit Partnership has been formed under a joint committee arrangement comprising of Plymouth, Torbay, Devon & Torridge councils.  We aim to be recognised 
as a high quality internal audit service in the public sector.  We work with our partners by providing a professional internal audit service that will assist them in meeting their 
challenges, managing their risks and achieving their goals.  In carrying out our work we are required to comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards along with 
other best practice and professional standards. 

The Partnership is committed to providing high quality, professional customer services to all; if you have any comments or suggestions on our service, processes or 
standards, the Head of Partnership would be pleased to receive them at robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk . 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 9

mailto:robert.hutchins@devonaudit.gov.uk


The Annual Audit Letter

for North Devon District Council

Year ended 31 March 2020

15 December 2020

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

2

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive Summary 3

2. Audit of the Financial Statements 5

3. Value for Money conclusion 11

Appendices

A     Reports issued and fees

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Peter Barber 

Key Audit Partner

T:  0117 305 7897

E: Peter.A.Barber@uk.gt.com

Andrew Davies

Audit Manager

T: 0117 305 7844

E: andrew.davies@uk.gt.com

Roz Apperley

Assistant Manager

T: 0117 305 7810

E: roz.e.apperley@uk.gt.com

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 10

mailto:Peter.A.Barber@uk.gt.com


© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

3

Executive Summary
Purpose
Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the work 

that we have carried out at North Devon District Council ( the Council) for the year 

ended 31 March 2020.  

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to the 

Council and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to draw to the 

attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed the National Audit 

Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 07 –

'Auditor Reporting'. We reported the detailed findings from our audit work to the 

Council’s Governance Committee as those charged with governance in our Audit 

Findings Report on 5 October 2020.

Respective responsibilities
We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice, which 

reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act). Our key 

responsibilities are to:

• give an opinion on the Council's financial statements (section two)

• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 

use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section three).

In our audit of the Council's financial statements, we comply with International Standards on 

Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the NAO.

Materiality We determined materiality for the audit of the Council's financial statements to be £1,000,000, which is circa 2% of the Council's gross cost of 

services. 

Financial Statements opinion We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 27 November 2020. 

We included an emphasis of matter paragraph in our report in respect of the uncertainty over valuations of the Council's land and buildings 

and investment properties and the property assets of its pension fund given the Coronavirus pandemic. This does not affect our opinion that 

the statements give a true and fair view of the Council's financial position and its income and expenditure for the year.

Whole of Government Accounts 

(WGA)

North Devon District Council fell below the threshold set by the NAO that requires detailed testing to be completed. We submitted our 

assurance statement to the NAO on 26 November 2020.

Use of statutory powers We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

Our workP
age 23

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

4

Executive Summary

Working with the Council

It has been a challenging year due to the impact of covid 19. 

Restrictions for non-essential travel has meant both Council and audit staff have had to adapt to ensure we have gained sufficient audit evidence for the entries within the financial 

statements.  This has meant a greater reliance on video calling for many aspects of the audit, particularly in terms of the use of sharing of screens to watch transaction listing being run.  

Where information is normally provided in a spreadsheet format, we have undertaken additional levels of testing to ensure that the information provided hasn’t been manipulated prior to 

being sent to the audit team.

We are pleased to report that this process has worked well with both teams collaborating to identify solutions to hurdles presented by remote working. Our ‘inflo’ document sharing 

system has facilitated this but inevitably the remote working has impacted on delivery and additional resources have been necessary on both sides to complete the work in accordance 

with the new extended reporting timetable.

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation

provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

December 2020

Value for Money arrangements We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

We reflected this in our audit report to the Council on 27 November 2020.

Certificate We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of North Devon District Council in accordance with the requirements of 

the Code of Audit Practice on 27 November 2020. 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

5

Audit of the Financial Statements

Our audit approach

Materiality
In our audit of the Council's financial statements, we use the concept of materiality to 

determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and in evaluating the results of 

our work. We define materiality as the size of the misstatement in the financial 

statements that would lead a reasonably knowledgeable person to change or 

influence their economic decisions. 

We determined materiality for the audit of the Council’s financial statements to be 

£1,000,000, which is to circa 2% of the Council’s gross cost of services. We used this 

benchmark as, in our view, users of Council's financial statements are most 

interested in where the Council has spent its revenue in the year. 

We also set a lower level of specific materiality for senior officer remuneration. This 

was set at £10,000.

We set a lower threshold of £50,000, above which we reported errors to the 

Governance Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

The scope of our audit
Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material 

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:

• the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and adequately 

disclosed; 

• the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and

• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view. 

We also read the remainder of the Statement of Accounts to check it is consistent with our 

understanding of the Council and with the financial statements included in the Statement of 

Accounts on which we gave our opinion.

We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit Practice. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is 

risk based. 

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to these risks 

and the results of this work.

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

6

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Management override of internal controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable 

presumed risk that the risk of management over-ride 

of controls is present in all entities. The Council faces 

external scrutiny of its spending and this could 

potentially place management under undue pressure 

in terms of how they report performance.

We therefore identified management override of 

control, in particular journals, management estimates 

and transactions outside the course of business as a 

significant risk, which was one of the most significant 

assessed risks of material misstatement.

As part of our work we have:

• evaluated the design effectiveness of management controls over journals;

• analysed the journals listing and determined the criteria for selecting high 

risk unusual journals;

• tested unusual journals made during the year and after the draft accounts 

stage for appropriateness and corroboration;

• gained an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical 

judgements applied made by management and considered their 

reasonableness; and

• evaluated the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, estimates 

or significant unusual transactions.

Our work identified that there is no 

preventative control in place around journals 

authorisation. All journals can be posted and 

authorised by the same person. There is only 

a retrospective review of all journals over 

£10,000 that occurs quarterly. 

Our testing of unusual journal postings made 

during the year did not identify any issues.

Improper revenue recognition

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed 

risk that revenue may be misstated due to the 

improper recognition of revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor 

concludes that there is no risk of material 

misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue 

recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at the Authority, we determined at

the planning stage that the risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition could be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including North Devon District Council, mean that all forms of fraud

are seen as unacceptable

We reviewed material revenue transactions as part of our audit and we were satisfied that there had been no changes of 

circumstance requiring us to alter our proposed strategy with regards to revenue recognition in the latter part of the year. 

Our audit work did not identify any issues in respect of improper revenue recognition.  

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

7

Audit of the Financial Statements
Significant Audit Risks (continued)

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Covid-19 

The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led to unprecedented 

uncertainty for all organisations, requiring urgent business continuity 

arrangements to be implemented. We expect current circumstances will have an 

impact on the production and audit of the financial statements for the year ended 

31 March 2020, including and not limited to:

- Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff to critical front line 

duties may impact on the quality and timing of the production of the financial 

statements, and the evidence we can obtain through physical observation;

- Volatility of financial and property markets will increase the uncertainty of 

assumptions applied by management to asset valuation and receivable 

recovery estimates, and the reliability of evidence we can obtain to 

corroborate management estimates;

- Financial uncertainty will require management to reconsider financial 

forecasts supporting their going concern assessment and whether material 

uncertainties for a period of at least 12 months from the anticipated date of 

approval of the audited financial statements have arisen; and 

- Disclosures within the financial statements will require significant revision to 

reflect the unprecedented situation and its impact on the preparation of the 

financial statements as at 31 March 2020 in accordance with IAS1, 

particularly in relation to material uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus as a significant 

risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks of material 

misstatement.

As part of our audit work we have:

• worked with management to understand the 

implications the response to the Covid-19 

pandemic had on the organisation’s ability to 

prepare the financial statements and update 

financial forecasts and assessed the 

implications for our materiality calculations. The 

draft financial statements were provided on 22 

July 2020, which was ahead of the date 

originally planned;

• liaised with other audit suppliers, regulators 

and government departments to co-ordinate 

practical cross-sector responses to issues as 

and when they arose;

• evaluated the adequacy of the disclosures in 

the financial statements that arose in light of 

the Covid-19 pandemic;

• evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence 

could be obtained through remote technology;

• evaluated whether sufficient audit evidence 

could be obtained to corroborate significant 

management estimates such as assets and the 

pension fund liability valuations; and

• evaluated management’s assumptions that 

underpin the revised financial forecasts and the 

impact on management’s going concern 

assessment.

Our audit work, did not identify any significant 

issues in respect of Covid-19 specific risks.

This is not to say that there was not an 

impact. The Council have identified a material 

uncertainty in relation to land and building 

valuations and has extended this to 

investment properties.

In addition on receipt of letters of assurance 

from the Devon County Pension Fund Auditor 

an additional material uncertainty was 

identified in relation to the property investment 

funds that form part of the Pension Fund 

Assets and North Devon District Councils 

share of these assets. The draft financial 

statements were amended to reflect this 

uncertainty. 

The financial challenge into the medium term 

have also increased due to the lost income, 

additional costs and the uncertainty of future 

government funding in respect of Covid-19. 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

8

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks (continued)

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of land and buildings (Rolling 

revaluation)

The Council revalues its land and buildings on a 

rolling five-yearly basis. This valuation represents a 

significant estimate by management in the financial 

statements due to the size of the numbers involved 

(£78.1m) and the sensitivity of this estimate to 

changes in key assumptions. Additionally, 

management will need to ensure the carrying value 

in the Council’s financial statements is not materially 

different from the current value at the financial 

statements date, where a rolling programme is used.

We therefore identified valuation of land and 

buildings, particularly revaluations and impairments,

as a significant risk, which was one of the most 

significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

As part of our audit work we have:

• evaluated management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of 

the estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of 

their work;

• evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation 

expert;

• written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried 

out;

• challenged the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess 

completeness and consistency with our understanding, the Council’s 

valuer’s report and the assumptions that underpin the valuation;

• tested revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input 

correctly into the Council’s asset register; and 

• evaluated the assumptions made by the valuer for those assets revalued at 

31 March 2020. For the assets not formally revalued in year we have 

assessed how management has satisfied themselves that these assets are 

not materially different to current value at year end. 

We noted that from 2019/20, the Council had 

changed its valuation date for those assets 

subject to revaluation in year to the 31 March 

2020. This combined with £72.9m of the 

£78.1m of assets held at 31 March 2020 

being subject to a revaluation in 2019/20 

provided strong assurance over the material 

accuracy of the land and buildings carrying 

value at 31 March 2020.

As highlighted previously in this report, we 

included an emphasis of matter paragraph in 

the audit opinion to reflect the uncertainty 

surrounding land and building (and 

investment property) valuations at the year 

end.  In line with RICS guidance, the valuer 

employed by the Council included a material 

uncertainty in their final valuation report.  

Officers reflected this in note 6 of the financial 

statements.  The emphasis of matter 

paragraph refers to this disclosure in the 

accounts and draws attention to it for the 

readers of the financial statements and 

reflects the increased uncertainty in global 

markets created by covid-19. 

This is in line with other local councils.

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

9

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks (continued)

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of pension fund net liability

The Council's pension fund net liability, as reflected in 

its balance sheet as the net defined benefit liability, 

represents a significant estimate in the financial 

statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a 

significant estimate due to the size of the numbers 

involved (£55.6 million in the Council’s balance sheet) 

and the sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key 

assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Council’s 

pension fund net liability as a significant risk, which 

was one of the most significant assessed risks of 

material misstatement, and a key audit matter.

As part of our audit work we have:

• updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in 

place by management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund net 

liability is not materially misstated and evaluated the design of the 

associated controls;

• evaluated the instructions issued by management  to their 

management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the scope of 

the actuary’s work;

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary 

who carried out the Council’s pension fund valuation; 

• assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information 

provided by the Council to the actuary to estimate the liability;

• tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and 

disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements with the 

actuarial report from the actuary;

• undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the 

actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of the 

consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any 

additional procedures suggested within the report; 

• agreed the advance payment made to the pension fund during the 

year to the expected accounting treatment and relevant financial 

disclosures; and

• followed up the unadjusted misstatement reported in the 2018/19 

Audit Findings Report and have ensured that this has now been 

adjusted correctly as a past service cost.

Our work has not identified any issues in respect of 

valuation of the net liability. 

On receipt of the letters of assurance from the 

Devon County Pension Fund Auditor an additional 

material uncertainty was identified in relation to the 

property investment funds that form part of the 

Pension Fund Assets and North Devon District 

Councils share of these assets.

The Council amended the draft financial statements 

to include a material uncertainty in note 6 of the 

revised financial statements. 

As highlighted previously in this report, we included 

an emphasis of matter paragraph in the audit opinion 

to reflect this uncertainty The emphasis of matter 

paragraph refers to this disclosure in the accounts 

and draws attention to it for the readers of the 

financial statements and reflects the increased 

uncertainty in global markets created by covid-19. 

This is in line with other local councils.

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

10

Audit of the Financial Statements
Audit opinion

We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 27 

November 2020.

Preparation of the financial statements

The Council presented us with draft financial statements in July 2020, ahead of the 

agreed timescale, and provided a good set of working papers to support them. The 

finance team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries during the course of 

the audit. 

Issues arising from the audit of the financial statements

We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council’s Governance Committee 

on 5 October 2020. 

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report

We are also required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and 

Narrative Report. It published them on its website alongside the draft Statement of 

Accounts in line with the National Deadline. 

Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant supporting 

guidance. We confirmed that both documents were consistent with  the financial 

statements prepared by the Council and with our knowledge of the Council. 

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 

We issued an assurance statement which confirmed the Council was below the audit threshold 

on 26 November 2020.

Certificate of closure of the audit

We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of North Devon 

District Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice on 27 

November 2020.

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

11

Value for Money conclusion

Background

We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit Practice, 

following the guidance issued by the NAO in April 2020 which specified the criterion 

for auditors to evaluate:

‘In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and 

deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and 

local people’. 

Key findings

Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and identify 

the risks where we concentrated our work.

The risks we identified and the work we performed are set out overleaf.

As part of our Audit Findings report agreed with the Council in October 2020, we 

agreed recommendations to address our findings.

Overall Value for Money conclusion

We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper arrangements to 

secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 

March 2020.

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

12

Financial Sustainability

North Devon District Council continues to face significant financial challenges over the medium term. As at month 9 the Council is forecasting an underspend of circa £0.006m in 2019/20 

but has a funding gap of circa £2.678m through to 2023/24. This budget gap has increased significantly from the budget gap of £0.666m reported in 2018/19. This is largely due to the 

assumptions made regarding New Homes Bonus and Business Rates. These are both areas of significant uncertainty and the Council appear to have taken a prudent approach. The 

Council currently has a General Fund Reserves balance (including earmarked reserves) of £6.629m. This is forecast to reduce by circa £1.3m as at 31 March 2020.

Findings

Historically the Council had a strong track record of meeting its financial targets, and despite a challenging year, the Council have delivered a small surplus of £0.241m for 

2019/20 which has been transferred into reserves. The Council ended the year with General Fund Reserves of £1.161m and General Fund Earmarked Reserves of £5.395m. 

As set out in our Audit Plan the Council faced a significant financial challenge pre Covid-19. At that point the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy indicated a budget gap 

over the medium term of £2.678m. Whilst there were schemes identified to close this gap and work had started in some areas to address the shortfall this was halted by Covid-19. 

The global pandemic has exasperated the financial challenges faced by the Council.  Although the outbreak had limited impact on 2019/20 it has serious consequences for 

2020/21 and beyond. The projected lost income and increased costs, have to date only been partially offset by additional central government funding.

It is clear from our review that the Council’s financial reporting arrangements are effective and the level of reporting has increased in response to the uncertainty presented by the 

virus. Despite the Council’s good track record of delivering savings, delivering increase savings to plug any gap in the current climate will be challenging and the use of reserves 

and balances is not sustainable into the medium term.

The longer-term impact of the virus is not yet known and there are likely to be significant impacts across the medium term. The Councils initial forecast indicate that whilst the 

2020/21 outturn will be impacted, and the original budget gaps remain these are likely to increase.

The pressures are expected to impact as follows:

Years 2021/22 and 2022/23 are therefore pivotal in achieving financial sustainability. Officers and Members recognise difficult decisions will need to be made to cut costs and 

deliver further savings. Saving schemes often have significant lead times and as such progress needs to be made to ensure the impact on the Council’s reserves are minimised. 

As at quarter 1 2020/21 the Council are forecasting an overspend of £0.385m, which will be funded from savings in year or use of reserves.

Financial modelling undertaken by the Council on busines rates and council tax collection sets out that ‘worse case’, there could be a further £0.372m per year challenge over the 

medium term. 

There is a session planned with the Senior Management Team and Members in mid-October 2020 to review the revised Medium-Term Financial Strategy and to discuss all the 

options for addressing the shortfall and ensuring financial resilience into the medium term.

Value for Money

Value for Money conclusion

Value for Money Risks

Risk identified in our audit plan

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

13

Conclusion

Based on the work completed we concluded that the Council has adequate arrangements in place to deliver financial sustainability. 

We have concluded that the Council has good arrangements in place to set a realistic and achievable budget for 2019/20. 

We have concluded that the Council has responded appropriately to the impact of Covid-19 on its medium term financial planning. The Council recognises the inherent risk due 

to this and the combination of loss of income and increased costs compounded by greater expectation and continued austerity. Whilst balances and reserves are adequate any 

planned use of them in future budgets is not sustainable into the medium term. 

The financial years 20/21 and 21/22 will see perhaps the peak of the challenge with reduced levels of income, impact on savings, and uncertainty of funding. It is therefore 

business critical that officers and members take immediate action to identify further mitigations by way of reducing costs or increasing income. It is also crucial the medium-

term financial plan is refreshed at the earliest opportunity.

Continued close in year monitoring and timely corrective action will be required to ensure budgets are delivered and service redesign with partners implemented.

Value for Money

Value for Money

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

14

A. Reports issued and fees – North Devon District Council

Reports issued

Report Dated issued

Audit Plan 10 March 2020

Audit Findings Report 25 September 2020 

Annual Audit Letter 11 December 2020

The North Devon District Council Audit Plan date 10 March 2020 included £7,500 of proposed addition fees to the scale fee to take account of the additional scepticism required on 

the audit and the raising of the bar by our regulator. This is reflected in the total proposed audit fees at planning above of £43,999.  

Since the presentation of the audit plan and subsequent letter, we have added a significant risk to the audit following the impact of Covid-19. We have now reflected on the time taken 

to discharge our responsibilities this year and are proposing a further increase in fees of £6,600 in addition to those proposed at the planning stage of the audit. This brings the total 

proposed audit fee up to £50,599. Further details on the breakdown is provided on the next page. 

This further charge has not been entered into lightly but reflects only a proportion of the significant additional work we have had to undertake this year to discharge our 

responsibilities.

We have been discussing this issue with PSAA over the last few months and note these issues are similar to those experienced in the commercial sector and NHS. In both sectors 

there has been a recognition that audits will take longer with commercial audit deadlines being extended by 4 months and NHS deadline by a month. The FRC has also issued 

guidance to companies and auditors setting out its expectation that audit standards remain high and of additional work needed across all audits. The link attached 

https://www.frc.org.uk/covid-19-guidance-and-advice (see guidance for auditors) sets out the expectations of the FRC.

Please note that these proposed additional fees are subject to approval by PSAA in line with the Terms of Appointment.

Audit fees 2019/20 Proposed fee

County Council scale fee

Additional proposed audit fee at planning stage

36,499

7,500

Total proposed audit fees (excluding VAT) at planning £43,999

Further additional fees proposed at completion 6,600

Total proposed audit fees (excluding VAT) on completion £50,599

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

15

Appendix A – North Devon District Council Audit fee variations – Further analysis 
Final proposed audit fees

The table below shows the proposed variations to the original scale fee for 2019/20 subject to PSAA approval

Audit area £ Rationale for fee variation

Scale fee 36,499

Raising the bar 2,500 The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has highlighted that the quality of work by all audit firms needs to improve across local audit. This 

required additional supervision and leadership, as well as additional challenge and scepticism in areas such as journals, est imates, financial 

resilience and information provided by the entity. 

Pensions – (IAS) 19 1,750 We have increased the granularity, depth and scope of coverage, with increased levels of sampling, additional levels of challenge and 

explanation sought, and heightened levels of documentation and reporting.

PPE Valuation – work 

of experts 

1,750 We have increased the volume and scope of our audit work to ensure an adequate level of audit scrutiny and challenge over the assumptions 

that underpin PPE valuations.

New Accounting 

Standards

1,500 Note that PSAA’s original scale fee for this contract was set in March 2018, so any new developments since that time need to be priced in. 

You are required to respond effectively to new accounting standards and we must ensure our audit work in these new areas is robust. 

Revised planning fee 43,999

Covid-19 6,600 Over the past six months the current Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on all of our lives, both at work and at home. The impact 

of Covid-19 on the audit of the financial statements for 2019/20 has been multifaceted. This includes:

• Revisiting planning - we have needed to revisit our planning and refresh risk assessments, materiality and testing levels. This has resulted 

in the identification of a significant risk at the financial statements level in respect of Covid-19 necessitating the issuing of an addendum to 

our original audit plan as well as additional work on areas such as going concern and disclosures in accordance with IAS1 particularly in 

respect to material uncertainties.

• Management’s assumptions and estimates - there is increased uncertainty over many estimates including pension and other investment 

valuations. Many of these valuations are impacted by the reduction in economic activity and we are required to understand and challenge 

the assumptions applied by management. 

• Financial resilience assessment – we have been required to consider the financial resilience of audited bodies. Our experience to date 

indicates that Covid-19 has impacted on the financial resilience of all local government bodies. This has increased the amount of work that 

we need to undertake on the sustainable resource deployment element of the VFM criteria necessitating enhanced and more detai led

reporting in our ISA260.

• Remote working – the most significant impact in terms of delivery is the move to remote working. We, as other auditors, have experienced 

delays and inefficiencies as a result of remote working, including managing around agreed dates for receiving the accounts in light of 

knock on implications of other sector audits, and delays in responses during audit fieldwork. These are understandable and arise from the 

availability of the relevant information and/or the availability of key staff (due to shielding or other additional Covid-19 related demands). In 

many instances the delays are caused by our inability to sit with an officer to discuss a query or working paper. Gaining an understanding 

via Teams or phone is more time-consuming.

Total proposed audit 

fees on completion

50,599

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

16

A. Reports issued and fees continued

Fees for non-audit services

Service Fees £

Audit related services 

- Housing Benefits £21,253

Non-Audit related services

- None

Nil

Non- audit services

• For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton 

UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The table above 

summarises all non-audit services which were identified.

• We have considered whether non-audit services might be perceived as a 

threat to our independence as the Council’s auditor and have ensured that 

appropriate safeguards are put in place. 

The above non-audit services are consistent with the Council’s policy on the 

allotment of non-audit work to your auditor.

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 10



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  Annual Audit Letter  |  December 2020

Commercial in confidence

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

North Devon District Council

Year ending 31 March 2020

15 December 2020

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at December 2020 4

Audit Deliverables 5

Appendix A – VFM Arrangements 6

2

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

This paper provides the Governance Committee with a report on progress in 

delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors. 

The paper also includes:

• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a local authority; and

• includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the Committee may wish to 

consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Governance Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section 

dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications 

www.grantthornton.co.uk

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager./

Introduction

3

Andrew Davies

Engagement Manager

T 0117 305 7844

M 07747 006 786

E andrew.davies@uk.gt.com

Peter Barber 

Engagement Lead

T:  0117 305 7897

E: Peter.A.Barber@uk.gt.com

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 11

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

Progress at January 2021

4

2019/20 Audit

Opinion for the Council

We presented our Audit Findings Reports (ISA260) at the Governance Committee on 5 

October 2020 and provided an update on 3 November 2020. In these reports we set out 

that our anticipated opinion was unqualified and was to include an Emphasis of Matter 

paragraph highlighting the material uncertainties disclosed in the financial statements in 

respect of land and buildings, investment properties and the property investment funds 

held within the Devon Pension Fund.

Subsequent to the committees we completed our audit procedures and issued our 

anticipated opinion, as set out above, on the 27 November 2020. We also issued the 

certificate on the same date.

Value for Money (VFM) conclusion

In addition to the opinion on the financial statements, we are also required to issue our 

Value for Money (VFM) conclusion on the Council’s arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. As indicated at the 5 

October 2020 Governance Committee we were expecting to issue a unqualified VFM 

conclusion based on our review of your arrangements for securing sustainable resource 

deployment. We issued a clean VFM conclusion, concluding that the Council does have 

arrangements in place to secure VFM on the 27 November 2020 alongside the opinion 

on the financial statements

Certification of claims and returns

We certify the Council’s annual Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with 

procedures agreed with the Department for Work and Pensions (DwP). The planning of 

the certification work for the 2019/20 has been completed. We have also completed the 

initial discovery testing. This identified a number of areas where additional testing is 

required and this work is currently underway. We intend to complete our work by the 

revised deadline of 31 January 2021. We will report our findings to the next 

Governance Committee in our Certification Letter.

Other areas

Events

Our annual chief accountants workshops will take place early in the new year. 

These events, spread throughout the country, will be open to your key finance 

officers and focus on the learning from 2019/20 across the sector as well as 

providing early insight and views on emerging issues affecting 2020/21 

closedown.

2019/20 Proposed Audit Fees

In our Audit Findings Report presented to Governance Committee on 5 October 

2020 the fees section indicated that final fees for 2019/20 were to be confirmed.

We have now reflected on the time taken to discharge our responsibilities this year 

and are proposing a further increase in fees of £6,600, in addition to those 

proposed at the planning stage of the audit. This further charge has not been 

entered into lightly but reflects only a proportion of the significant additional work 

we have had to undertake this year to discharge our responsibilities. Further 

details on the make up of all the additional fees are set out in our Annual Audit 

Letter.

Please note that these proposed additional fees are subject to approval by PSAA 

in line with the Terms of Appointment.

VFM for 2020/21 and onwards

The NAO consultation on a new Code of Audit Practice (the “Code”) has finished, 

and the new Code has completed its approval process in Parliament. It therefore 

came into force on 1 April 2020 for audit years 2020/21 and onwards. The new 

Code supersedes the Code of Audit Practice 2015, which was published by the 

National Audit Office (NAO) in April 2015.

The most significant change under the new Code is the introduction of an Auditor’s 

Annual Report, containing a commentary on arrangements to secure value for 

money and any associated recommendations. The NAO public consultation ran 

until 2 September 2020. The NAO will now analyse all consultation responses 

received and consider what changes are required to the draft guidance. More 

detail is provided on the impact of this change in appendix A.

.

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

Audit Deliverables (updated – Covid-19 impact)

5

2019/20 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2019/20.We have appended the updated fee letter seeking additional fees as a result 

of the increased regulatory focus facing all audit suppliers.

April 2019 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Governance Committee setting out our proposed 

approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2019-20 financial statements. This includes the findings of 

our  value for money initial risk assessment.

March 2020 Complete

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit in our Audit Progress Report.

June 2020 Complete

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the October Governance Committee.

October 2020 Complete

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statements, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

October 2020 Complete

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

October 2020 On this agenda.

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

Appendix A

Auditor’s work on VFM Arrangements

6

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

How have the NAO changed value for money work ?

7

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

How is value for money work changing ?

8

More 
meaningful 
and timely 
reporting

Maximising 
the value 

from 
auditor’s 

work

More 
freedom to 
reflect local 

context

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

9

The three criteria have changed…

Informed 
decision making

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

Working with 
partners and 
other third 

parties

Governance

Financial 
sustainability

Improving 
economy, 

efficiency and 
effectiveness

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

10

A key change in reporting…

Annual Audit 
Letter

Auditor’s Annual 
Report

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

11

So what is in an Auditor’s Annual Report ?

Commentary on 
arrangements

Recommendations

Progress in 
implementing 

recommendations

Use of additional 
powers

Opinion on the 
financial 

statements

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

12

Recommendations

Action to be 
taken to 

address the 
weakness

Impact of 
weakness 

on the 
audited 

body

Evidence 
on which 
auditor’s 
view is 
based

Nature of 
weakness

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

13

Practical implications 

The new approach is more complex, more involved and will lead to better quality working achieving more impact. Before 

beginning work, we will discuss with you:

• Timing 

• Resourcing 

• Fees 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2020

Public

14

Q&A

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 11



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 

and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 

for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Open 

 
 

 
 

NORTH DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO: GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Date:  12th January 2021 

TOPIC: 
AUDIT RECOMMENDATION TRACKER 

REPORT BY: HEAD OF CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 This is the regular progress report to the Committee in relation to action taken to 
address internal and external audit recommendations. 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 That the Committee note the actions that have been taken to address identified risks 
since the 3rd November 2020 Governance Committee meeting. 

 

2.2 That the Committee raises any areas of concern arising from the list of outstanding 
recommendations. 

 

3. Reasons for Recommendations 
 

3.1 To give assurance to the Committee that audit recommendations are being actively 
managed, and to give the Committee a full opportunity to review any areas of concern. 

 

4. Report 
 

4.1 SMT has reviewed the high and medium risk audit recommendations to assess 
progress and instigate any required actions. 
 

4.2 Since the last meeting the number of recommendations now tracked has risen to 1,221. 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 12



2 

 

Table A) Live Audit Reports, Status & Numbers 
Code 
 

Title Status Progress High 
Risk 

Medium 
Risk 

Low Risk 

16 PL Planning Applications 2015/16  In 
Progress 

83% 0 3 0 

17 SRR Security Review Report 2017/18  In 
Progress 

98% 4 5 0 

17 L Licencing 2017/18  In 
Progress 

95% 0 1 3 

17 G Grants 2017/18  In 
Progress 

99% 0 2 5 

19 E&ES Email & Exchange Server 2018/19  In 
Progress 

95% 0 3 1 

19 GDPR General Data Protection Regulations 2018/19  In 
Progress 

92% 0 0 7 

20 BC Business Continuity 2018/19  In 
Progress 

0% 3 1 0 

20 FB&E Fraud, Bribery & Ethics 2018/19  In 
Progress 

40% 0 5 1 

20 P Payroll 2019/20  In 
Progress 

0% 0 0 1 

20 CC Cash Collection 2020/21  In 
Progress 

50% 2 2 0 

20 CG & RM Corporate Governance & Risk Management 2020/21  In 
Progress 

0% 6 2 0 

20 MCS&BC Main Accounting System & Budgetary Control 2020/21  In 
Progress 

0% 1 1 0 

20 P  Payroll 2019/20  In 
Progress 

0% 0 0 1 

 

 
 
 
 

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 12



3 

 
Table B: Audit recommendations setting completed since the last Audit Committee 
 

Recommendation Closure Note Original Due 
Date 

Completed 
Date 

20 CG&RM 02 Periodic 
review of Service and 
Project Risks to 
establish if there are 
any cross cutting risks 
that need to be 
escalated to the 
Corporate Risk Register 

SMT are now receiving Service Risk Registers on their agenda every fortnight. 
This will be a rolling programme to ensure that senior management has over-
sight of Service Risk Registers throughout the year. 

 

 
 
31-Dec-
2020 
 

 
 
15-Dec-
2020 

20 CG&RM 03 
Maintenance & review 
of Service Delivery 
Risks 

SMT are now receiving Service Risk Registers on their agenda every fortnight. 
This will be a rolling programme to ensure that senior management has over-
sight of Service Risk Registers throughout the year. 

Additional emphasis will be made to include any future service risks during the 
service planning process. 

 

 
 
 
31-Dec-
2020 

 
 
 
15-Dec-
2020 

20 CC 01 Produce an 
overarching Procedure 
Manual for Cash 
Collection 

This document has now been produced and is saved within the Customer 
Services Team Drive 

31-Dec-
2020 

15-Dec-
2020 

20 CC 03 Daily post 
opening should be 
undertaken by at least 
two members of staff 

This procedure has now been put into place. 
 

31-Dec-
2020 

10-Dec-
2020 

20 C 01 Access levels 
of staff identified should 
be reviewed and the 
listings updated 

Recommendation completed November 2020. DAP have been provided with 
screenshots / prints by the Exchequer Manager and Senior Accountant showing 
the changes made upon Creditor User Access and Civica Purchasing Requisi-
tion and Approval confirming completion of the necessary action. 

 
10-Dec-
2020 

 
30-Nov-
2020 

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 12



4 

 
Table C: Outstanding Audit Recommendations where Head of Service have requested a revision to the due date 
 

Code Description Progress Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

17 SRR 08 
Information Sharing 

The Council should ensure that the 
Customer Record Management system 
is fit for purpose and is accessible by all 
staff dealing with the Council’s service 
users, especially those with violence 
markers. As the reporting, recording 
and maintaining of information on inci-
dents will always be user dependant, it 
is vital that all users are trained up and 
encouraged to make use of and update 
the CRM system regularly. 

85% 

The process for accessing V&A mark-
ers has now been agreed following 
discussions with our solicitor with re-
gard to GDPR; the information will be 
accessible via Insite for each Officer 
to check prior to making site/home 
visits and a policy will be in place for 
this.  Access will be permission based 
and details of the marker will only be 
shared as necessary. 

Extension requested to allow ICT to 
put this into place. 

Request revised due date: 31st 
March 2021 
 

30-Jun-
2018 

30-Nov-2020 

20 CG&RM 01  
Review, update & 
version control the 
Risk Management 
Framework & re-
publish to Middle 
Managers 
 

The Risk Management Framework 
should be updated to reflect current 
roles and responsibilities, and a review 
process introduced to ensure it is re-
viewed at appropriate intervals. 

 

 0% 

The review of the Corporate Risk 
Management Framework has com-
menced and this will be distributed to 
CORGI members in December for 
their review and comment. 

Request revised due date 31st Jan-
uary 2021 
 

31-Dec-
2020 

31-Dec-2020 

20 CG&RM 05   The 
Corporate Risk 
Group should be 
given responsibility 
or oversight and 

In accordance with the recent Assur-
ance Framework document supporting 
the Annual Governance Statement the 
Corporate Risk Group should be given 
responsibility for oversight and effective 

0% 

CORGI next due to meet in January 
2021. 

Request revised due date 31st Jan-
uary 2021 

31-Dec-
2020 

31-Dec-2020 

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 12



5 

 

effective operation 
of the Risk 
Framework 

operation of the Risk Framework. That 
responsibility should be clearly outline in 
the updated Risk Management Frame-
work document. 

 

20 CG&RM 10  
Significant actions 
from H&S Welfare 
Committee should 
be tracked in an 
'Actions Section' of 
the notes. Notes 
referred to CORGI & 
SMT 

The significant actions from the Health, 
Safety and Welfare Committee should 
be identified and tracked for implemen-
tation, in an “Actions Section” of the 
notes. That section should be referred 
to senior management and Corporate 
Risk Group for consideration on 
whether action proposed is sufficient. 

 

0% 

The Health & Safety Committee are 
meeting in January and the 'signifi-
cant actions' will be included within 
the meeting notes which are pub-
lished.  This will continue for future 
meetings. 

Request revised due date: 31st 
January 2021. 
 

31-Dec-
2020 

31-Dec-2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Table D: Outstanding Audit Recommendations 
 

Code Description Progress Latest Note 
Original 
Due Date 

Due Date 

NIL      

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 12



Filepath: I:\Audit and Risk\Audit Committee\2020 Reports 

 

5. Progress tracking of Annual Governance Statement 
 

5.1 An annual review of NDC’s governance arrangements leads to the Annual 
Governance Statement, which forms part of the Statement of Accounts.  

 
5.2 In addition to any other issues the review captures recommendations from external 

and internal audit and inspections and sets out an action plan. This plan is tracked 
through Covalent; Table E below. 

 

 

6. Constitution Context  
 

Appendix and 
paragraph 

Referred or 
delegated power? 

5.5 Delegated 
 

7. Statement of Internal Advice 
 
7.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate Councillors 

and officers. 
 

 
Author: Sarah Higgins     Date: 4th January 2020 
Reference: Audit Recommendation Report January 2021 V1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60

Agenda Item 12



Filepath: I:\Audit and Risk\Audit Committee\2020 Reports 

 
 

Table E: Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 
 

Code Description Status Progress Bar Latest Note 
Original Due 
Date 

Due Date 

AGS 19/20 01 
Review all business 
continuity plans an 
introduction of 
business resumption 
plans 

A review of all 
business continuity 
plans and 
introduction of a 
corporate business 
resumption plan 
together with a 
cyber attack 
response plan, a 
revised Disaster 
Recovery Plan and 
new Cyber Incident 
Response Plan 

 In Progress  

We have a Cyber Incident 
Response Plan, which was 
adopted by SMT a couple of years 
ago. The team have been 
reviewing this and there was 
another meeting on 17th 
December to complete. 

 

31-Mar-2022 31-Mar-2022 

AGS 19/20 02 
Development of an 
Action Plan to 
implement 
recommendations 
from the Peer 
Review 

Formal reporting of 
the Peer review 
report should take 
place once received. 
An Action Plan 
should also be 
developed to 
implement 
appropriate 
recommendations. 

 In Progress   31-Mar-2021 31-Mar-2021 

AGS 19/20 03 
Financial and 
Contract Procedure 
rules 

A system for 
reporting breaches 
to Governance 
Committee should 
be introduced 

 In Progress   31-Mar-2021 31-Mar-2021 

 

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Governance Committee Work Programme 2020/21 

This work programme provides structure for the Audit Committee to ensure it receives reports and updates at the 

appropriate meetings throughout the year. It is reviewed and updated at each committee meeting.  

 

North Devon Council Reports and updates: 

Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

Jun 2020 Jul 2020 Sep 2020 Nov 2020 Jan 2021 Mar 2021 

Review of the Committee’s 
Terms of Reference 
 

     Report Due 

Annual Review of the 
Committee’s effectiveness (JT) 
 

     Report Due 

Half Yearly Report from the 
Chair of the Governance 
Committee (KJ). 
 

  Report 
Due Sept 
each year 

  Report Due 
March each 
year 

Annual Governance Statement 
 
 

  Report 
Due 

   

Statement of Accounts 
 
 

Report Due      

Letter of Representation (JT) 
 
 

  Report 
Due 

   

Compensation payments made 
under delegated powers. (CH) 
 

 Report Due     

 
Corporate Risk Register (SH) 
 

  Report 
Due 

  Report Due 

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 13



Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

Jun 2020 Jul 2020 Sep 2020 Nov 2020 Jan 2021 Mar 2021 

Major changes to Accounting 
Policies Management 
procedures to be reported by 
the Head of Resources 
 

     Report Due 

 
Update on Governance 
Arrangements  
 

    Report Due  

Update on Business Continuity 
 

    Report Due  

Audit Recommendation 
Tracker 
 

Report Due Report Due Report 
Due 

Report Due Report Due Report Due 

Work Programme 
 
 

Report Due Report Due Report 
Due 

Report Due Report Due Report Due 

 

Internal Audit Agenda Items: 

Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

Jun 2020 Jul 2020 Sep 2020 Nov 2020 Jan 2021 Mar 2021 

Internal Audit Annual report 
 

Report 
Due 

     

Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 
 

     Report Due 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

     March each 
year 

Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

Report 
Due 

Report 
Due 

Report Due Report Due Report Due Report Due 

 

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 13



External Audit Items: 

Dates of forthcoming meetings: 

 

Jun 2020 Jul 2020 Sep 2020 Nov 2020 Jan 2021 Mar 2021 

External Audit - Fee Letter 
 

      

External Audit - Findings Report 
 

  Report 
Due 

   

External Audit - Annual Audit 
Letter 
 

   Report Due   

External Audit - Plan 
 

     Report Due 

Certification Work Report 
 

     Report Due 

External Audit - Progress Report 
and Sector Update 

Report 
Due 

Report Due Report 
Due 

Report Due Report Due Report Due 

 

 

Updated 18/12/20 

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 3rd November 2020 subject to:
	9 Internal Audit Progress Report
	10 External Audit Annual Audit Letter
	11 External Audit Progress Report and Sector Update.
	12 Audit Recommendation Tracker
	13 Work Programme 2020-2021

